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          1  PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS AND CONCESSIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Good

          3  afternoon everybody. Welcome to the Subcommittee on

          4  Planning, Dispositions and Concessions, Subcommittee

          5  of Land Use of the City Council.

          6                 Today's date is May 1st, 2007.  I am

          7  joined by Council Members Vinnie Ignizio, and Inez

          8  Dickens, and we're ready to get right to it.

          9                 Opening the hearing on Land Use

         10  Number 374, the Gates Avenue Cooperative Apartments.

         11  This is in Brooklyn Community Board 3, C 070243 HAK

         12  in the district of Council Member Al Vann.

         13                 We have representatives here from

         14  HPD, which I will ask to introduce themselves, and

         15  go right ahead and introduce this item.

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  Thank

         17  you, Chairman Garodnick.

         18                 I am Carol Clark, the Assistant

         19  Commissioner for Local Legislative Affairs at HPD.

         20                 I am joined this afternoon be Wendell

         21  Walters, who's the Assistant Commissioner for

         22  Housing Production.

         23                 We are glad to be here, and Wendell

         24  oversees the Cornerstone Program.  So, he's going to

         25  speak on L.U. 374.
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:  Good

          3  afternoon.

          4                 Again as Carol said, I am Wendell

          5  Walters, Assistant Commissioner for Housing

          6  Production at HPD, and the Cornerstone Program is

          7  under my jurisdiction.

          8                 I will go onto discuss the Gates

          9  Avenue Cooperatives located at 560- 566 Gates

         10  Avenue, and consists of the proposed disposition of

         11  six vacant city-owned lots through HPD's Cornerstone

         12  Program.  The sponsor for that area community

         13  council and Gates Townsend LLC, proposed to

         14  construct one five-story building.  When completed

         15  the project will provide 34 cooperative dwelling

         16  units, and 1,100 square feet of open space.

         17                 Councilman Vann has reviewed the

         18  project, and indicated his support.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.

         20                 So the one five- story building will

         21  go over what are now six vacant lots?  Is that what

         22  you said?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:

         24  That's correct.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  So it will
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          2  all be combined into one--

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:  Into

          4  one building.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: -- one

          6  development.

          7                 And the 30 co-op units that you

          8  described, it was 30, right?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:

         10  Thirty-four.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thirty-four,

         12  thank you.

         13                 Those units will be sold to whom?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:  To

         15  eligible home buyers, usually with a community board

         16  preference.

         17                 Like all HPD programs, it will go

         18  through a lottery process where an application

         19  process and period will be issued publicly through a

         20  general publication for responses and then we will

         21  get those applications all together, and pull them

         22  out of a hat literally, and number them from their

         23  pulling out of that hat, and we will go through all

         24  of them to get to the 50 percent community board

         25  residents.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  So beyond the

          3  community board preference, is there any other

          4  eligibility requirement to be in the hat, or to be

          5  pulled out of the hat?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:

          7  Well, we do have most importantly really, income

          8  restrictions.  We have two tiers of affordability

          9  for this project.  We have the 80 percent and lower

         10  of AMI for 11 units in the project, and 23 units

         11  will be required to be sold to 130 percent of AMI

         12  and lower.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, so 23

         14  percent is up to 130 percent of AMI, and for 11

         15  units you said was up to 80 percent of AMI, is that

         16  right?

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:

         18  That's correct.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, good,

         20  thank you.

         21                 Seeing no other members of the public

         22  wishing to testify on this item, Land Use Number

         23  374, the Gates Avenue Cooperative Apartments, the

         24  hearing on that item is now closed.

         25                 We will open the hearing on Land Use
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          2  Number 393, the Fox Leggett Cooperative Apartments,

          3  Bronx Community Board 2, in the district of Council

          4  Member Maria del Carmen Arroyo,

          5  C 070272 HAX.

          6                 Go right ahead.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:  The

          8  Fox Leggett Cooperative Apartments, they are located

          9  at 713- 717 Fox Street, and consist of the proposed

         10  disposition of two city-owned lots for development

         11  under HPD's Cornerstone Program.

         12                 The proposed sponsor, Blue Sea

         13  Development (phonetic) LLC will construct one

         14  seven-story building, which will contain 50 co-op

         15  dwelling units, and 2,200 square feet of community

         16  space.

         17                 In addition, the project will contain

         18  4,600 square feet of outdoor recreational space on

         19  the roof.

         20                 Councilwoman Arroyo has reviewed the

         21  project, and indicated her support.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.

         23                 The lots at 713- 715 to 717 Fox

         24  Street are now vacant?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:
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          2  That's correct.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Similarly to

          4  the last item that we heard, there will be one

          5  building that would span across those several lots.

          6  Is that right?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:  One

          8  seven- story building, that's correct.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  This one with

         10  50 units?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:

         12  Fifty, that's correct.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  And can you

         14  give us a sense again, of the--

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:

         16  Again, similar to the prior project, we do have

         17  affordability requirements on this one as well.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  What are

         19  they?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:

         21  Thirty-seven out of the 50 units will be affordable

         22  to 130 percent of AMI and lower, and another 13 of

         23  the units will be affordable to 80 percent of AMI

         24  and lower.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.
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          2                 You said that Council Member Arroyo

          3  has indicated her support?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:

          5  That's correct.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.

          7                 Seeing no other members of the public

          8  wishing to testify on Land Use Number 393, the Fox

          9  Leggett Cooperative Apartments, we will close the

         10  hearing on that item, and open the hearing on Land

         11  Use Number 412, the Grant Avenue Cooperative

         12  Apartments, in the district of Council Member Helen

         13  Diane Foster, Bronx Community Board 4, C 070311 HAX.

         14                 Go right ahead.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:  Yes

         16  the Grant Avenue Cooperative Apartments are located

         17  at 1247- 1275 Grant Avenue, and they consist of the

         18  proposed disposition of eight vacant city- owned

         19  lots through HPD's Cornerstone Program.

         20                 Again, the proposed sponsor is the

         21  Briarwood Organization LLC will construct two,

         22  ten-story buildings and will provide 162 co- op

         23  dwelling units, and 19,000 square feet of open

         24  space.

         25                 Councilwoman Foster has reviewed the
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          2  project, and indicated her support.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you, do

          4  you want to anticipate my next question?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:  We

          6  have, as the other two items, two tiers of

          7  affordability.

          8                 One again, at 130 percent of AMI and

          9  lower, and another 80 percent of AMI and lower.  The

         10  130 percent of AMI has 36 units with a large

         11  majority of apartments, 125 in number, being 80

         12  percent of AMI and lower.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.

         14                 How do you determine the breakdown of

         15  whether the units will be one up to 130 percent of

         16  AMI, or up to 80 percent of AMI?

         17                 I noticed that the numbers were

         18  different, were flipped in some.  Some of them, the

         19  balance were up to 130 percent of AMI, some of them

         20  the balance were up to 80 percent.           How is

         21  that determined, or how does that work within the

         22  Cornerstone Program?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:  Well

         24  we always strive to have as much affordability as we

         25  possibly can.  A lot is dictated on the sub-city

                                                            11

          1  PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS AND CONCESSIONS

          2  programs that are being utilized.

          3                 In this case, we are working with the

          4  Housing Development Corporation, and their co-op

          5  program, affordable co-op program, which requires

          6  affordability at the 80 percent level in exchange

          7  for their subsidy.

          8                 HPD also has made a contribution to

          9  this project as well to get as much affordability as

         10  possible.

         11                 So, as well as Carol points out to

         12  me, the State of New York through their Affordable

         13  Housing Corporation is providing subsidy also.

         14                 This particular project is very

         15  important to HPD because it really is one of the

         16  largest co-op programs we are trying to develop in

         17  the South Bronx, which is an emerging coop market.

         18                 So, we feel that it is necessary to

         19  put the appropriate amount of subsidy into this

         20  project to create this market and to maintain

         21  affordability.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay thank

         23  you.

         24                 Council Member Dickens.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Thank you.
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          2                 Now let me ask you about that subsidy

          3  program.

          4                 Is that only for rentals?  One

          5  hundred percent rentals?  Or is that also available

          6  for co-op or condo owners?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:  That

          8  is for co-op only.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  That's for

         10  co-op and not condo?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:  Not

         12  condominiums, that's correct.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  And not

         14  rentals?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:  Not

         16  rentals, no ma'am.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  All right,

         18  thank you. Let us talk about that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Also on the

         20  affordability requirements for all of them, what are

         21  the re- sale restrictions that exist on these

         22  properties if somebody today bought in, and they

         23  were the lucky ones to be pulled out of the hat,

         24  what would be their obligations for re- sales?  Or

         25  are there none?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:

          3  Well, we can't stop people from trying to sell their

          4  units.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  I guess the

          6  question is --

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:

          8  However, there's owner occupancy requirement that

          9  goes with all these subsidized units that HPD is

         10  involved in, and if you do not maintain that

         11  residence, the primary residence, during that time,

         12  you'd be subject to the repayment of those subsidies

         13  associated with those units.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  But if I

         15  wanted to, for example, let's say I happen to live

         16  in one of these community boards, and I put my name

         17  in the hat, and I was lucky enough to be pulled out

         18  of the hat, and fell within one of the income

         19  categories that you specified, and then six months

         20  later wanted to turn around and sell the apartment,

         21  presumably from what I'm hearing from you, I don't

         22  have to sell it to somebody who meets those same

         23  income eligibility requirements.

         24                 Is that right?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:  No
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          2  you don't, but again, you'd be subject to the

          3  repayment of the subsidy associated with that unit.

          4                 The subsidy amount is usually

          5  determined on what the sales price would be, and

          6  what the price would have been if not for the

          7  subsidy.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  I see.

          9                 So, you can sell it to somebody who

         10  does not fall within the income requirements, but

         11  you have to pay back the subsidy?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:

         13  Associated with that unit.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  So that is

         15  really the equivalent of a penalty to create an

         16  incentive.

         17                 Now, if you do sell it to somebody

         18  who falls within those income guidelines, then you

         19  do not need to repay the subsidy, is that right?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:  We

         21  try to, in our policy decisions, try to discourage

         22  flipping, and coming in and purchasing and moving on

         23  through its sale.

         24                 So whether you sell it to somebody

         25  within that range or not, you'd be subject to the
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          2  payback of that subsidy.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Oh okay, so

          4  then what is the time frame in which it's considered

          5  flipping?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:

          7  Really the day after.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  What if you

          9  wait six months?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:

         11  Every year that it goes throughout the course of

         12  what we call "enforcement period," there will be a

         13  pro- rated amount decreased in the subsidy every

         14  year over, in this case, it would be a fifteen year

         15  period.

         16                 So, one-fifteenth would be decreased

         17  in that subsidy amount, each year that you're into

         18  that.  So, if you're in the home for the first year,

         19  if you're due the day after, or within the first

         20  year, we substitute the repayment of that whole.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, so I

         22  see some of the incentives are to really buy and

         23  stay.

         24                 The issue of turning it over to

         25  somebody who is outside of or within the income
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          2  requirements, that's really not the focus of the

          3  incentive.  The incentive is to buy and hold.

          4                 After 15 years, however, there is no

          5  such penalty for repaying the subsidy, and at that

          6  point you are entirely free to sell it to whomever,

          7  at whatever price, and whatever income restrictions.

          8

          9                 Is that right?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:  That

         11  is correct.

         12                 The reward is to obviously get the

         13  discounted sales price for it, but you do that for a

         14  price, and that is to kind of hang around and live

         15  in the apartment.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Council

         17  Member Dickens.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  These are

         19  co-ops and not condos, is that right?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:

         21  These units they are cooperatives.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Yes, so it's

         23  really the shares and not the unit themselves?

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:

         25  That's correct.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Okay, thank

          3  you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  All right,

          5  thank you very much, and that will be that for Land

          6  Use Number 412.

          7                 We'll close the hearing on the Grant

          8  Avenue Cooperative Apartments, C 070311 HAX, and

          9  open the hearing on Land Use Number 430, Melrose

         10  Commons- Site 5 in the Bronx Community Board 1, in

         11  the district of Council Member Maria del Carmen

         12  Arroyo, C 070280 HAX.

         13                 Go right ahead.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:  Land

         15  Use Number 430 consists of the proposed disposition

         16  of six vacant, City-owned lots at East 156th Street

         17  and Elton Avenue, and known as the Melrose site,

         18  common site 5, under the New York State Housing

         19  Trust Fund/Housing for Working Families Program.

         20                 The proposed sponsor, Blue Sea

         21  Development Company LLC, will construct one five-

         22  story residential building which will create 62

         23  units of rental housing for low- income and formally

         24  homeless occupants, plus one super's unit.  The

         25  project will also include 8,500 square feet of open
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          2  space, and Councilwoman Arroyo has reviewed the

          3  project, and indicated her support.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.

          5                 You said the name of the program on

          6  this one was the--

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:  It's

          8  a state program, Housing Trust Fund/Housing for

          9  Working Families Program.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, so

         11  these lots at 157th and 156th Street are now vacant?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:

         13  That's correct.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  So this would

         15  build one, five- story residential building, you

         16  said with 62 units?

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:

         18  Rental housing, that's correct.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  This is

         20  rental housing, and this is for people who are

         21  homeless or formally homeless?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:  For

         23  both low- income and homeless.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Low- income

         25  and homeless.

                                                            19

          1  PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS AND CONCESSIONS

          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:

          3  Previously homeless.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  How is low-

          5  income defined for the purpose of this?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:  For

          7  this project and this subsidy program, 60 percent of

          8  AMI and lower for all the units.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Along the

         10  same lines as the questions before, if somebody

         11  moves in qualified for the low income to be a renter

         12  in this building, and then decided to move out for

         13  whatever reason, is that apartment then rented again

         14  to somebody who is up to 60 percent of AMI?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:

         16  Unlike the homeowners for the rental programs, these

         17  apartments are permanently affordable.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Permanently

         19  affordable, there will never be a time in which this

         20  is rented to anybody --.

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:

         22  That's correct.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, thank

         24  you.

         25                 All right, seeing no other members of
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          2  the public wishing to testify, and you indicated

          3  that Council Member Arroyo has indicated her

          4  support, is that right?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:  Yes,

          6  sir.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  We will close

          8  the hearing on Land Use Number 430, Melrose Commons-

          9  Site 5, Bronx Community Board 1, C 070280, and open

         10  the hearing on Land Use Number 395, non- ULURP

         11  Number 20075263 HAK, several addresses on Glenmore

         12  Avenue in the district of Council Member Erik Martin

         13  Dilan.

         14                 Go right ahead.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:  Land

         16  Use 295 consists of the proposed disposition of four

         17  vacant, city- owned lots located at 509, 513, 515

         18  and 519 Glenmore Avenue through HPD's Cornerstone

         19  Program.

         20                 The proposed sponsor, Cypress Hills

         21  Local Development Corporation will construct four

         22  buildings, which will consist of 12 condominium

         23  dwelling units.

         24                 Council Member Dilan has reviewed the

         25  project and has indicated his support.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, what

          3  are the restrictions governing the purchase of these

          4  12 condo units?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:

          6  These 12 units will be affordable to 130 percent of

          7  AMI and lower, as dictated by the State and their

          8  subsidy program, Affordable Housing Corporation.

          9  These will be home ownership condominium units.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  I'm sorry,

         11  the last thing you said one more time?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:

         13  These are condos.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  They're

         15  condos.  You said home ownership?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:

         17  Units.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Units, okay.

         19                 Resale?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:  The

         21  same kind of restrictions, owner occupancy, and

         22  subject to repayment of the subsidy if--

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Fifteen

         24  years?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:
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          2  Within a 15 year period, correct.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  With a

          4  sliding scale going?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:

          6  Sliding scale going down as long as you stay there,

          7  prorated over the--

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  But no

          9  restriction as to whom you may sell?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:  No,

         11  sir.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, thank

         13  you.

         14                 We will now close the hearing on Land

         15  Use 395, non- ULURP Number 20075263 HAK, and move on

         16  to Land Use Number 425, non- ULURP Number 20075335

         17  HAX, three properties in the district of Council

         18  Member Foster.

         19                 Go right ahead.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  L.U.

         21  Number 425 consists of the proposed disposition of

         22  three occupied, city-owned buildings located at 1134

         23  College Avenue, 1186 Washington Avenue, and 1254

         24  Morris Avenue, through HPD's Neighborhood

         25  Redevelopment Program. The proposed sponsor, Promesa
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          2  Housing Development Fund Corporation will

          3  rehabilitate the building to provide 45 units of

          4  rental housing, plus one super's unit.

          5                 Council Member Foster has reviewed

          6  the project, and indicated her support.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.

          8                 How many units do the three occupied

          9  buildings have today?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  Today,

         11  the three occupied buildings have a total of 57

         12  units.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  So the

         14  rehabilitated building will be a little larger, is

         15  that right?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  That's

         17  correct, it's a gut renovation of the buildings and

         18  to comply with the multiple dwelling laws, the

         19  building code, and basically HPD's design

         20  guidelines.

         21                 We will, in fact, create 12 fewer

         22  units.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  That means

         24  they'll be rental units?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  Yes,
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          2  that's correct.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  They will be

          4  rented to whom?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:

          6  They'll be rented to  --  that's a good question.

          7                 The existing tenants are offered the

          8  opportunity to come back to the building, the

          9  sponsor must offer the legal tenants an apartment.

         10  There's no displacement of the people that are in

         11  the building currently.

         12                 Currently there are 19 occupied units

         13  of those 57, and 38 of them are vacant.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  So the 19

         15  folks who are in the three occupied buildings will

         16  be given a chance to rent in the new building,

         17  correct?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  That's

         19  correct.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Then the rest

         21  will be just put out for listing?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  Put

         23  out for listing for whomever is coming, but I

         24  believe that the Promesa Housing Development Fund

         25  Corporation is in the business of renting to people
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          2  in the community who are seeking affordable housing.

          3    That's why they were selected to do this project.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Is there any

          5  requirement that they do that?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:  I

          7  could speak to that a little bit. I used to work in

          8  this are of HPD, and like other programs, the other

          9  50 percent community board preference, the existing

         10  tenants of course, have the first priority to come

         11  back to those buildings.

         12                 We will publicly market the rest of

         13  them to try to meet that 50 percent, again community

         14  board preference and the rest will come through the

         15  applications that will be issued through the lottery

         16  process.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  So, there's a

         18  50 percent community board preference for the

         19  remaining units that are not for the preference of

         20  the people who lived in the existing buildings, and

         21  beyond that there is no income restriction on the

         22  rental of these units, is that right?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:

         24  Under this program, all of the  -- well actually,

         25  three- quarters of the units in what we call NRP, is
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          2  affordable to 60 percent of the area median income.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, I'm

          4  sorry, you said  --  give me those numbers one more

          5  time so I've got them.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:

          7  Sixty percent of the area median income will be  --

          8  the rents will be structured at under this program.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, so all

         10  45 units fall within  --  they will be rented to

         11  people who make up to 60 percent of AMI, is that

         12  right?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  That's

         14  correct.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, so

         16  those are the restrictions, and then is that a

         17  permanent restriction?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.

         20                 We will now close the hearing on Land

         21  Use Number 425, non-ULURP Number 20075335 HAX, and

         22  that you indicated that Council Member Foster also

         23  had expressed her support for this project, is that

         24  right?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  Yes
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          2  she has.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, and we

          4  will start closing the hearing on Land Use Number

          5  425, and opening the hearing on Land Use Number 437,

          6  non- ULURP Number 20075378 HAK, at 5011 Fourth

          7  Avenue in Brooklyn, in the district of Sara

          8  Gonzalez.

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  Right

         10  that's L.U. 437, it consists of the proposed

         11  disposition of one occupied city-owned building,

         12  which is located, as you noted, at 5011 Fourth

         13  Avenue, and this is through HPD's Negotiated Sales

         14  Program.

         15                 The proposed sponsor, Napco

         16  (phonetic) Holdings LLC will complete repairs on the

         17  eight units with the existing tenants in place.

         18                 HPD has had extensive discussions

         19  with Council Member Gonzalez about this building,

         20  and she supports the project.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  The project

         22  is to turn it over to Napco for rehabilitation of

         23  the building with the people in it.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  That's

         25  correct.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Then what

          3  happens?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:

          5  There's a two- year lease at the current HPD rents,

          6  and then the property will fall into rent

          7  stabilization.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  When you say

          9  HPD rents, what are they specifically?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  This

         11  was a building that was in the Tenant Interim Lease

         12  Program.  This is a TIL Program, and sometimes

         13  buildings that are in that program, a small portion

         14  of them, in fact, are not able to succeed as low-

         15  income co-ops, and when that happens there is a

         16  different approach taken such as what's being taken

         17  here with the Negotiated Sales Program to protect

         18  the tenants and renovate the building, and make sure

         19  that it's up to code, and manage the building.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Is Napco in a

         21  situation, or anybody like Napco who assumes a

         22  building through negotiated sale program, and then

         23  has a situation where after two years the rents

         24  revert to rent stabilization?

         25                 If somebody leaves, are they able to
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          2  avail themselves of vacancy de- control if they were

          3  to do additional renovations to the apartments?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  Under

          5  the rent stabilization laws, they would be permitted

          6  to do so, yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Even though

          8  they just renovated the building in order to secure

          9  it from the City?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  That's

         11  correct.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay seeing

         13  nobody else wishing to testify on this item, Land

         14  Use 437, non- ULURP 20075378 HAK, in the district of

         15  Council Member Gonzalez who has indicated her

         16  support?

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:  She

         18  has, yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  The hearing

         20  if now closed 437, we're now opening the hearing on

         21  Land Use Number 441, non ULURP Number 20075382 HAK,

         22  at 833 DeKalb Avenue, the last one on our agenda for

         23  the day, in the district of Council Member Al Vann.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:  Land

         25  Use 441 consists of the proposed disposition of one

                                                            30

          1  PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS AND CONCESSIONS

          2  vacant, city- owned building located at 833 DeKalb

          3  Avenue through HPD's Store Works Program, under the

          4  proposed sponsor NHS.

          5                 Neighborhood Housing Services

          6  Community Development Corporation will complete the

          7  rehab rotation, and sell the building to an eligible

          8  purchaser.

          9                 Councilman Vann has been briefed, and

         10  has indicated his support for the project.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you.

         12                 So NHS rehabs the building and then

         13  they sell to somebody of their choosing, is that

         14  right?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:  This

         16  would also go through a public marketing and field

         17  applications, and go through a lottery.

         18                 This building is actually associated

         19  with a couple of other buildings as well in one

         20  project.  So, we'll have a lottery for all of those

         21  buildings, and have a community board preference

         22  again for those, and the eventual sale to an

         23  eligible home buyer.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  So price is

         25  not predetermined on the sale from NHS to whoever it
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          2  is, right?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:

          4  Price is actually predetermined for the sale.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  What is the

          6  price?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:  The

          8  price for this one looks as though it's at $600,000.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, and

         10  when you said it's sold to  --  so it'll be sold

         11  from NHS to whoever that is for $600,000 and then

         12  the  --  you said there was how many units in this?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:  This

         14  is a mixed use, 3- story building consisting of two

         15  residential units, and one commercial on the ground

         16  floor.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, for the

         18  two residential units, these will be rentals for

         19  those two units once it's owned by whoever it's

         20  owned by at the end of the day?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:  We

         22  do have an owner occupancy requirement for the Store

         23  Works Projects as well, so the purchaser would have

         24  to live in one of those units, and perhaps be able

         25  to rent out both the commercial and the additional
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          2  rental unit.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  I see, so the

          4  purchaser has to live in the building but then the

          5  whole building has to live in, but then there's a

          6  commercial rental and one other residential rental,

          7  is that right?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:

          9  That's correct.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Is there any

         11  requirement to whom, for the residential, the other

         12  residential property that they may rent?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:  A

         14  requirement on who--

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  On income or

         16  community board preference?

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:  On

         18  the rental units, no sir.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, seeing

         20  no other members of the public wishing to testify on

         21  this item, we will close the hearing on Land Use

         22  441, non- ULURP Number 20075382 HAK. Again, you

         23  indicated that Council Member Vann had expressed his

         24  support of this program, is that right?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALTERS:
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          2  That's correct.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Okay, thank

          4  you.

          5                 All of the items that we have heard

          6  today, we are going to couple together for the

          7  purposes of voting.

          8                 We are going to lay over the rest at

          9  the request of the individual members in whose

         10  district those properties sit, and the Chair

         11  recommends an aye vote, and we will ask the counsel

         12  to call the roll.

         13                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Chair

         14  Garodnick.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Aye.

         16                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

         17  Member Dickens.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Aye.

         19                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

         20  Member Ignizio.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO:  Aye.

         22                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  By a vote

         23  of three in the affirmative, none in the negative,

         24  and no abstentions, the aforementioned items are

         25  approved and referred to the Full committee.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK:  Thank you

          3  very much to everybody, and with that the

          4  Subcommittee is adjourned.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 2:15 p.m.)
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